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THE COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE DIVISION

MARY MASTROPAOLO, DIRECTOR

COMMITTEE ON PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS AND

INTERNATIONAL INTERGROUP RELATIONS

Council Member Wendell Foster, Chair

April 4, 2001

INT. NO. 868:
By: Council Member Foster; also Council Member O’Donovan


TITLE:
In relation to a street name, Andrew Robinson Place, Borough of The Bronx.

INTENT:




This legislation would add, through the 

posting of an additional sign, the name “Andrew Robinson Place” on Clay Avenue between East 169th Street and East 170th Street.

COMMENT:


The following biographical material was provided by the Robinson family.



Andrew Robinson was born on September 21, 1916, in Columbia, South Carolina, to John and Pearl Robinson.  He graduated from Columbia’s Booker T. Washington High School, in 1933 and in 1937 relocated to New York City.  Here he met his future bride, Bessie, and they were married in 1939.  The young couple began their family and Andrew began his career as a livery operator.  He remained in the livery business for 33 years until his retirement in 1986.


Andrew Robinson became active in the community affairs of The Bronx and the Claremont area during the 1950’s.  In the 1960’s he led demonstrations to convert residential Clay Avenue into a one-way street and to have the city build a swimming pool and comfort station for Claremont Park.  For more than fifty years he was looked upon as the “Mayor of Claremont” and the community relied on, and responded to, his leadership.  In recent years his initiatives resulted in trees being planted, annual community beautification projects being established, the maintenance of a community safety patrol, vacant lots being turned into beautiful gardens, and a program which installed window gates and door locks for senior citizens.


In the late 1970’s, Andrew Robinson was a founding member of the Bronx Unity Democratic Club, Inc., and was active in the elections of district officials.  His involvement expanded until he was elected as a Democratic State Committeeman, and later, as the Democratic Male District Leader of the 77th Assembly District.  During this period he was appointed to Bronx Community Board No. 4 where he served as chairperson of the Sanitation and Public Safety Committee for seventeen years.  Subsequently, he was elected as Vice President and then Chairperson of Community Board No. 4.  He provided pivotal leadership to the Board until he developed health problems.


Mr. Robinson received many honors during his lifetime, including Mayor Koch’s Certificate of Appreciation, in 1984, and a 1997 honor by WCBS-TV in that networks “Fulfilling The Dream” program.  He was also the President and Founder of the Claremont Homeowners and Tenants Civic Improvement Corporation from 1960 until his death. Through this organization, Mr. Robinson provided an invaluable community service by providing transportation and escort services for senior citizens active at the Morrisania, William Hodson, and St. Augustine Senior Centers.  He was also a long-standing member of the 44th Police Precinct Council, serving as the chairperson of  S.A.L.T. (Seniors and Law Enforcement Together).  Andrew Robinson was the Vice President of H&R Contractors and Maintenance Corporation, a real estate broker and a notary public.  His monumental legacy to the Bronx is 50 years of involved excellence.


Andrew Robinson died on July 11, 2000 at the age of 83.  He was survived by his 107 year old mother, Mrs. Pearl Robinson, of Columbia, South Carolina; three sisters, Arneatha Robinson, Frazell Jackson, and Ruth Johnson, all of Columbia, South Carolina.  Andrew Robinson, Jr. of Teaneck, New Jersey, and Franz Robinson of The Bronx; one daughter, Marlene Hicks of The Bronx; eleven grandchildren, 17 great grandchildren, and 5 great great grandchildren.  In view of his great dedication and service to his community, it is fitting that Clay Avenue, between East 169th Street and East 170th Street, be called Andrew Robinson Place in his honor.


This local law will take effect immediately.
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